_ VLR Listed: 7/31/1980 .

- “NREP:NorTIsted™ g

'oﬁx«@o%q

o1¥
Form Na. 10-300 \“ﬂ_\

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

SEE INSTRUCTIONS IN HOW TO COMPLETE NATIONAL REGISTER FORMS
TYPE ALL ENTRIES -- COMPLETE APPLICABLE SECTIONS
HNaME

HISTORIC Wiley's Tavern Archaeological Site

AND/OR COMMON

B O A O | o — :

At - ORI B L 2 N N . P '-_."07"6“ m.uchT'M N -t

CITY, TOWN . A CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT -

Darripnle - X ety o 5th, W.C. Danie
STATE : - ~ CODE COUNTY CODE
Virginia 51 Halifax 88
BICLASSIFICATION -

CATEGQORY OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
—DISTRICT —PUBLIC —~OCCUPED —AGRICULTURE  _._MUSEUM
~BUILDING{S} ZprivaTE X unoccumen . COMMERCIAL  __PARK

, —STRUCTURE —BOTH —WORK IN PROGRESS —EDUCATIONAL  ZpatvaTe RESIOENCE
3 X PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE ~—ENTERTAINMENT __RELIGIOUS
—ORJECT —1iNPROCESS X _YES: RESTRICTED —_GOVERNMENT  _SCIENTIFIC
_ —BEING CONSIDERED ~_YES: UNRESTRICTED —IMDUSTRIAL —~TRANSPORTATION
—NO —MIUTARY —OTHER:
EJOWNER OF PROPERTY . . C e
NAME .. P .
Mrs. Margaret A. Sheler °
STREET & NUMBRER R .
Route 3 - Coem e
T CITY.TOWN STATE
South Boston XK. VICINITY OF Virginia
TEILOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION
¢
n:grs?r:‘\’vuos}mm&trc Halifax County Courthouse
STREET & NUMBER
CTY. TOWN Towvm of Halifax V’:;:inia
ﬂ REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS
TTE : c .
Virginia Site Suryey Form, 44HA36
DATE
October 30, 1978 ~—FEDERAL X STATE _COUNTY __LOCAL
DEPOSITORY FOR ¥ren Kitchen
SUAVEY RECOROS _ yirginia Research Center for Archaeology,College of William and Mary
CITY. TOWN STATE

L e R e SR A % —— A A i . o —

~Hilllazaburg, Virginia 23186




v ne

K& DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
X_EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED X | NALTERED X _ORIGINAL SITE
—GOoU X puins —ALTERED —MOVED CATE—— .
~—FAIR —\UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The archaeological remains of an eighteenth. century ordinary known as Wiley's
Tavern WSS,
VR These remains consist of a tweaty-foot by twenty—four-foot field stone
foundation with an end chifmey. The area is currently cavered by a lavn gl

Photographs taken in 1924 and 1936 indicate that Wiley's Tavern was a one—and-
one-half story log structure with a wood shingled »oofs (Photos'land 2 ). Local
residents indicate that the tayern interior consisted of one large room with an

- overhead loft. A wooden lean-to was located immédiately adjacent to the tavern. -

The tavern and lean—to collapsed in the 1950's and the above-ground debris was
removed. The area was planted in lawm. A Virginia Research Center for Afchaeology
archaeological survey of the property in 1978 located the intact foundation remains
of the tavern. The Shefer home, constructed In 1932,fs located nearby, (Photo 3).
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

: Eighteenth century Wiley's Tavern, an archaeological site in Halifax County,
figured prominently in one of the most strategic military mansuvers of the Amexican
Revolution. The Tavern gerved alternstely as the headquarters of the British General
; Charles Lord Cornwallis and his Awerican counterpart, General Nathaniel Greene, during
the decisive military stratagem known as the Retreat to the Dan River. The Wiley's
Tavern site symbolizes for the people of Halifax County their area's most significant
historical event, a fuat which prevented the complete devastation of the American
army in the South,: Thus, archaeological excavation of the Wiley's Tavern site would
reveal architectural and artifactual’ data potentially capable of recomstructing the
setting in which Halifax County played its most sfgnificant role in the history of
the American nation. Moreover, data would be gained on the construction and operation
of a Back country.colonizl tavern which could serve to generate comparative studies
with previously excavated taverns in cities like Williameburg, Alexandria and
Philadelphia. Because Wiley‘'s Tavern is located
near the North Carolima line, archaeological excavation should reveal valuable re-
search. data about inter-colontal trade.

- —— e m e mg —

Outbuildings such as a kitchen, dairy, smokehouse, stable and graishouse were
usually present adjacent to the ordinary itself. Although the archaeological remains
of such structures were not located during the 1978 VRCA survey, they are expected
to be present within the namirnated acreage. Becausa minor utilitarian outbuildings
waere usually pulled down or allowed to decay as modern ways of life rendared them
useless, they are a relatively undocumented page in American vernacular architectural
history. Here, historfcal archaeology can make one of its most significant contri-
butiong. For that reason, the Wiley's Tavern site and its surrounding yardscape
and outbuildings sitesshould be preserved for future study with National Register
recognition being an initfal step toward that goal.

P e et s ———— =

5 William Wiley acquired approximately 2,000 acres of Halifax County land in the

! middle of the eighteenth century in a location near modernday Tutbeville. By January

1771 he was operating an ordinary on the Dan River near Bayd's and Irwin's Ferries,

through Halifax County. Receipts for trans-

actions at Wiley's Tavern indicate that he was selling rum and loaf sugax to the :

! public as early as January llth of that year. Wiley next appearea in the historic
record on April 28, 1774 when he advertised in Purdie and Dixon's Williamsburg
Virginia Gazette that he had taken up a number of free-running swine, which he would
detain in Halifax until they were claimed.

(See Continuation . Sheet #1)
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William Wiley apparently naglected to obtain a license to keep a tavern, an
omission which by November 1779 resulted in his being summoned before the local
Justices and charged with selling liquor illegally. His failure to license hie
tavern may have been deliberate. Because the law traditionally gave ferrymen a mono-~
poly on tavern operation within a ten mile radius of their crossings and Wiley's
Tavern was only four miles from Irwin's Ferry and seven miles from Boyd's Ferry,
which had a licensed tavern, perhaps Wiley would have been unable to obtain a license.
Moreover, the licensing of a tavern required the posting of a substantial bond as well
as the annual purchase of a licensa, financial obligations which may have been diffi-
cult, if not impossible, for William Wiley, given the rural economy of eighteenth
century Halifax County.

Although the larger eighteenth century taverns, usually in urbah areas, were
run with a sizeable staff of servants and slaves, the majority of rural taverns were
small. Many of these country taverns had been private residences first. They
usually had a large common room on the first floor, with one or more bedrooms in an
overhead loft. Wiley's Taverm, according to oral tradition, precisely fits this
architectural description.

In smaller taverns family members usually waited upon the guests, with the assis-
tance of household slsves. According to the 1790 census, Willism Wiley's household
consisted of four white adults and eleven Megro slaves, a group which would have
been capable of operating a busy tavern.

William Wiley's tavern would have served as a center of commercial and social
activity during the eighteenth century, as country tavernstyplcally did when they
were located along well traveled routes. However, it was not umtil February 1781
that William Wiley's ordinary attained its greatest historical significance. It was
successively occupied by the leaders of both the British and American armies during
the military action known as.the Retreat to the Dan.

Following the American army's crushing defeat in Camden, South Carolina, in
August 1780 under the leadership of General Horatio Gates, General Nathanial Greene
was placed in charge of the American Army in the Southern Department, assuming
command on December 3, 1780. Although 2,300 men had survived Gate's defeat, Greene
wrote to the Commander-in-Chief, George Waihington that only 800 of these men were
properly clothed and equipped for duty. Greene had hoped to acquire new recraits
from Virginia but learned that the British held both Norfolk and Portsmouth and that
Virginia was abaorbed in her own defensa.

Greene called a Council of War at Salisbury, North Carolina. The officers pre-
sent unanimously agreed that another direct confrontation with Cornwallis's superior
forces would totally annihilate the remainder of the Southern Army. Therefore,
Creene elected to withdraw his army across the Dan River in Virginia, out of reach
of the British, a plan known in the documentary record as the Ratraat to the Dan.

rom ~ ek aiaw dmee Clnne #9)
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Colonel Edward Carrington was sent ahead to Virginia to procure a number of boats
at Irwin's and Boyd's Ferries to transport the army across the Dan River. General
Thaddeus Kosciusko, the Polish patriot and military engineer, began preparing for-
tifications to cover the crossing. Greene selected Colonils¢Williams, Carrington,
Howard, Washington,and Lee to command the 800 light troops assigned to caver the
retreat of the main body. General Andrew Pickens was assigned fo follow in Corn-
wallis's wake, cutting off his communications and supply routewith the British forces
in South Carolina. Pickens was also to recruit militia along the way.

On February 10, 1781 the Retreat to the Dan commenced. Greene set out on a fast-
pPaced eighty milemarch north toward Boyd's Ferry, Virginia. Corowallis pursued. The
British burned their baggage to avoid being hindered by it, assuming that they could
live off the land. Pickens, sweeping behind, cut them off from their source of ammu-
nition in South Carolina.

Because it was the season for spring flooding, Cornwallis expected the American
troops to cross the Dan River to the west, {n the shallows of its uppar regiom.
Colonel Williams, realizing this, moved his forces westward, holding the attemtion of
the British army. Meanwhile, Greene retreated in a direct line to Boyd's Ferrxy,
arriving there on February 13, 1781. To facilitdtethe river crossing the American
troops split into two groups, one crossing at Boyd's Ferxry and the other four miles
upstream at Irwin's Ferry, using the boats provided by the people of Halifax County.
By February l4th Greene's army was established in the breastworks constructed by Kos-
clusko on the northern bank of the Dan.

Cornwallis arrived at the Dan's southern bank and digcovered that the American
army had escaped to safety across the swollen river. He used as his headquarters
Wiley's Tavern, which was (S EPout of the range of American fire.

~Cornwallis's Order Book, chronicling his pursuit of Greeme'’s army shows that ks _
issued orders from his "Headquarters,Wiley's House, 15th February, 1781."1 He-
ordered the lmmediate withdrawal of his men to North Cavrolina.

By February 17th the last British troops had left the Boyd's Ferry area. Generxal
Nathaniel Greene recrossed the Dan River and on FPebruary 23rd made Wiley's Tavern
-his headquarters. The American army followed and moved towaxd Guilfiord Courthouse
for a major confrontation with Cornwallis's troops. The American Forces were streng-
thened considerably by Halifax County recruits. Although the British gained the
victory in the ensuing battle, their army was greatly depleted of officers, men
and ammunition,which greatly contributed to their conclusive defeat at Yorktowm.

(See Continuation Sheet #3)
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Wiley's Tavern continued to function as an ordinary throughout the remainder of
the eighteenth century. Its ownership was conveyed from William Wiley to his son
and then passed into the Pate family for two generations. The tavern property was
subsequently acquired by the Owens, who after three consecutive generations of
ownership sold the tavern land to itspresent owner, (N INENNED (Figure 1).

Wiley's Tavern, which served alternately as the field headquarters of both
Cornwallis and Greene, symbolizes for the people of Halifax County the contributiocn
their ancestors made toward the winning of the American Bevolution, as it was Halifax
County's men and boats that turned the American army's retreat into a victory. As
such, Wiley's Tavern represents a significant moment in American history. The in-
clusion of Wiley's Tavern in the Virginia Landmarks Register and the National Register
of Historic Places would recognize this aspect of Halifax County's cultural hexitage.

The tavern site is, to many Halifax County citizens, a tangible symbol of their
area's contribution to American liberty. As well, these remains could yield im—
portant architectural and archaeological data abouta little~studied aspect of
colonial life, the back country tavern. Therefore they should he preserved.

1. The Order Book of lord Cornwallis, reprinted in appendix of E.W. Carouthers
The British Army in North Carolina in 1781, p. 411. .
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